
1 
 

 

Minutes of the Full Council Meeting 
Date: Tuesday 07 October 2025 

Time: 7:00 PM 
Venue: Town Hall, Bridge Street, Downham Market PE38 9DW 

Livestream Link: YouTube Channel 

Present 

Chair: The Mayor, Cllr Michael Lane 
Councillors Brewer, Cain, Campell -Robb, Daymond, Dickson (Arrived during item 1), Hobbs, 
Jordan, Leach, Lewis, Leivers, B Moyses (Arrived during item 1), S Moyses (Arrived during 
item 1), Perkin, C Pyatt, J Pyatt & Sims. (17) 
 
Claire Dornan (Town Clerk) 
 
Borough Cllrs Osborne & Ratcliffe 
 
6 Members of the public at the start of the meeting 
 
The Chair reminded all present of the emergency evacuation procedure and of the need to 
keep phones on silent. 
 
1. To Note Apologies for Absence. 
 
Apologies were received from Cllr Wiles (Personal) and County Councillor Tony White. 
 
The Mayor read a resignation letter from Cllr Buxton. 
 
2. To Receive Declarations of Interest and consider requests for Dispensations. 

Members to declare any interests, including Disclosable Pecuniary Interests they may 
have in agenda items that accord with the requirements of the Town Council’s Code of 
Conduct. 

 
Cllr Jordan declared a pecuniary interest in agenda item 8. 
 
Cllr C Pyatt stated that all Cllrs should ask for a dispensation, even if it is not a pecuniary 
interest, as they are residents of the town. 
 
3. To approve the Minutes of the Full Council Meeting held on the 09 September 2025. 

 
Resolved: That the minutes of the Full Council Meeting held on 09 September 2025 be 
approved. 
Proposed Cllr Lane, seconded Cllr Dickson    All In Favour 

 
 
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCy8Z5l4jHqydpOkOivqqb8g/featured


2 
 

4. Public Forum. 
 
4.1. County Councillor and Borough Councillor 

 
County Cllr White had given his apologies. 
 
Borough Cllr Ratcliffe spoke about the parking problems around Hillcrest Primary School.  
Cllr Ratcliffe is attempting to make the area safer.  Cllr Dickson asked if the Bexwell Road 
lay-by near Downham Academy also be reviewed as residents are receiving daily abuse. 
 
Borough Cllr Osborne advised that the Borough currently has a budget survey open until 26 
October 2025 which asks for resident’s opinions on service provision, council tax and future 
plans.  Cllr Osborne spoke positively about Heritage Open Day and National Police Memorial 
Day.  Cllr Osborne made members aware that Borough Cllr Bullen is currently raising funds 
for the Swan Youth Project.  Cllr Osborne also spoke about Local Government 
Reorganisation.  Cllr Lewis asked for more funding for Downham Market given that the 
Guildhall had been given £30M towards refurbishment. 
 

4.2. Police  
 

There was no representative present. 
 

4.3. Public  
 
Jean Rochford from No More Silence thanked the Town Clerk and her team for their support 
on providing space to educate residents about sexual abuse. 
 
Colin Glover thanked the Town Council for their support of Heritage Open Day and asked for 
support for 2026. 
 
A representative from Melody Allsorts of Downham (MAD) asked the Town Council to 
reconsider their grant request.  The representative was invited to the Governance & Finance 
Committee meeting on 16 October 2025 at 6pm where their letter to Council will be 
considered. 

 
5. Mayor’s announcements. 
 
The Mayor gave an overview of his Mayoral visits: 
  
10 September 2025 Poppy Appeal Tea Party 
13 September 2025 Poppy Appeal Country Music Night 
14 September 2025 Battle of Britain Service at Thetford 
17 September 2025 RAF Lakenheath  
19 September 2025 Fenland District Council Reception 
21 September 2025 Downham Market Heritage Open Day / Battle of Britain Service 
25 September 2025 Stone Cross Memorial  
26 September 2025 Youth Advisory Board Games Evening 



3 
 

28 September 2025 King’s Lynn Police Memorial Day 
05 October 2025 St Mary’s Stradsett Harvest Festival 
 
The Mayor advised that the next Charity Quiz Night is Friday 17 October 2025 at 7pm for a 
7:30pm start. He advised that it is £5 per person, teams of 4 with a raffle available. 
  
6. To approve the Minutes of the following Committees 

 
6.1 Planning Committee – 19 August 2025 
 

Resolved: To accept the minutes of the Planning Committee held on 19 August 2025. 
Proposed Cllr Daymond, seconded Cllr Brewer, All In Favour 

 
6.2 Property Committee – 20 August 2025 & 10 September 2025 
 

Resolved: To accept the minutes of the Property Committee held on 20 August 2025 and  
10 September 2025. 
Proposed Cllr Jordan, seconded Cllr C Pyatt, 16 In Favour. 1 Abstention. 
 
7. To consider grant request from Downham Market Christmas Lights Limited and agree 

response 
 

Resolved: To provide a grant of £2,500 to Downham Market Christmas Lights Limited. 
Proposed Cllr C Pyatt, seconded Cllr B Moyses, All In Favour 

 
8. To reconsider the Gritting Contract following scrutiny from Property Committee and 

agree new contract. 
 

Recommendation from Property Committee - To appoint DA Jordan Groundworks to the 
gritting contract for a three year period. 
 

A named vote was requested. 
 
Resolved: To accept the recommendation of Property Committee. 
Proposed Cllr C Pyatt, seconded Cllr Daymond, 10 In Favour. 6 Against. 
 
In Favour – Cllr Leach, Cllr Lewis, Cllr B Moyses, Cllr C Pyatt, Cllr S Moyses, Cllr Daymond,  
Cllr J Pyatt, Cllr Cain, Cllr Sims, Cllr Leivers (10) 
 
Against – Cllr Dickson, Cllr Brewer, Cllr Perkin, Cllr Campbell-Robb, Cllr Hobbs, Cllr Lane (6) 
 
The Mayor advised Cllr Jordan that he could not vote. 
 
 
 
 
 



4 
 

9.  To receive updates from working parties   
 
9.1 Grounds Maintenance Working Party 

 
Members were advised that a meeting had not taken place. 

 
9.2 Jubilee Community Centre Site Terms & Conditions Of Use Working Party 

 
Members were advised that a meeting had not taken place. 
 

9.3 Jubilee Community Centre Site Business Plan Working Party 
 
Members were advised that a meeting had not taken place. 
 

9.4 Car Park Orders Working Party 
 
Cllr C Pyatt advised that a meeting had been held and that a discussion had occurred around 
whether this should be a working party or a sub-committee.  The majority of the Cllrs 
preferred a working party, and the Town Clerk was asked to confirm that this was approved.  
The Town Clerk confirmed that Full Council had voted on a working party and not a sub-
committee. 
 
10. To receive outside body reports. 

 
10.1 Youth Advisory Board 

 
Cllr Lane advised that there had been a successful Games Evening and that members of the 
Youth Advisory Board plan to present to Council in January 2026. 
 

10.2 Safer Neighbourhood Action Panel 
 
Cllr Leivers advised that the SAM2 data had been downloaded and there were concerns 
over the data from the Bexwell Road report.  This had been sent to the Police Beat Manager 
and the Police plan to take action when resources allow. 
 
Cllr Leivers reminded members that the next SNAP meeting is on 13 October 2025 at 7pm in 
Watlington Village Hall. 
 

10.3 Downham Market & Downham West Joint Burial Board 
 
Cllr Daymond advised that the Downham Market & Downham West Joint Burial Board had 
opened the chapel of rest on 21 September 2025 as part of Heritage Open Day as it is a 
building of interest.  There were over 400 visitors to the site on Heritage Open Day. 
 
 
 
 



5 
 

10.4 100 Acre Charity 
 
Cllr Daymond advised that the last meeting of the charity had been held on 23 July 2025 
which was a Trustee meeting.  The next meeting is scheduled for 12 November 2025 at 
7:15pm in the Conservative Club. 
 

10.5 West Norfolk Tourism Forum 
 
Cllr Leivers advised that there had not been a meeting for 6 months with the last meeting 
having been held in March 2025. 
 
11. Councillors’ Questions and to receive suggestions for future agenda items 
 
Cllr Hobbs requested prettifying of the town to be on the next agenda.  Cllr Hobbs spoke of 
decorating the wall around St Edmunds Church at a cost of circa £100 per square foot with a 
plaster / cement relief to depict galloping horses. 
 
Cllr Leivers asked that an update from network rail on the signal box be added to the next 
agenda so that the correspondence could be read out. 
 
Cllr J Pyatt requested Live Streaming to be added to the next agenda. 
 
Cllr Lewis asked for information on the Tree Course which staff were attending.  The Town 
Clerk informed Cllr Lewis that it was a Risk Assessment course. 
 
Cllr Daymond noted that the gravel horse at the Bexwell interchange had been damaged 
and asked that the Borough Council be contacted. 
 
Cllr Hobbs asked for a resident’s welcome pack idea to be added to the next agenda. 
 
Cllr Campbell-Robb asked that the resident’s welcome pack be added to the Town Council 
website when it is available. 

 
12. To note the date of the next meeting – 04 November 2025, 7pm, Town Hall 

 
This was agreed. 
 
Meeting ended: 7:52pm 


